2015 SENATE APPROPRIATIONS

SB 2002




2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Appropriations Committee
Harvest Room, State Capitol

SB 2002
1/14/2015
Job # 21969

] Subcommittee
[J Conference Committee

Committee Clerk Signature w
g Mvt/z/\/d

\
Explanation or reason for introduction of blIIIresqutloé/

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the office of the
secretary of state.

Minutes: Attachment #1

Legislative Council -
OMB - Lori Laschkewitsch

Co-Chairman Krebsbach called the committee to order on SB 2002. All committee
members were present except Senators Holmberg and Erbele who were ill.

Al Jaeger, North Dakota Secretary of State: Introducing the Secretary of State Budget
bill. Attachment #1.

Senator Krebsbach: Are your temporary people pretty much fulltime and have they been
longterm?

Al Jaeger: A few of them have been. If | hire a temporary person through the agency,
that comes out of my salary appropriation. We have also been hiring through a staffing
service, that comes out of my operating line so sometimes we have them 6,7, or 8 months.
We have a couple of part-time people that come in %2 days. We have had two half-time
people that have been with us probably in excess of a year.

Senator Robinson (question to Lori): Do we have the latitude within general fund
agencies to pay benefits?

Lori Laschkewitsch: An agency has the choice to pay full health benefits and give the
option to the employee to purchase their retirement. Under the Affordable Care Act, things
have changed slightly and that is if we have temporary employees that are working 30
hours or more, we are required to provide them with a single health insurance plan. We
cannot charge them more than 9.5% of their income. If we chose 9.5% of their income, we
would be charging every single person a different amount which would administratively be
very difficult. One of the other options that was given to us by the federal government was
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that we could charge them 9.5% of the federal poverty level which is what we chose to do
and so if someone is working temporary at 30 hours or more, we charge them 9.5% of the
federal poverty level which is $92 and then the state picks up the $380 difference for a
single plan. Then we also have to provide them the option if they want to purchase the
difference for a family plan.

Al Jaeger: He introduced Deputy Secretary of State Jim Silrum, and Renae Bloms ,
Accounting Director. Jim informed him that they've had 42 temporary people.

Senator Carlisle: HB 1053, the Centralized Desktop Support Services - it's a bill to require
that all agencies have the services.

Lori Laschkewitsch: There were 29 agencies recommended in a study for desktop
services. Agencies that chose to request the funding for the desktop services in their
budget were funded in the Governor's Recommendation. The SOS is currently purchasing
services from ITD for their desktop services already so that's why you won't see something
itemized specifically and they didn't have it in their optionals because they would then
transition into those desktop services. If that bill passes, it will require all of the 29
agencies to have the money put in their budget so that they purchase those desktop
services from ITD. At this point, the Governor was supporting the agencies requesting it.

Senator Carlisle: What kind of fiscal note is on this bill?

Lori Laschkewitsch: It's about $5M. That is a double impact because it's the
appropriation to those agencies and when they pay their money to ITD, ITD has special
funds but they also need an appropriation to spend those special funds.

Senator Bowman: When you do a study, is it going to include that it's going to last more
than one biennium before we have to update and modernize?

Al Jaeger: Some of the systems we're looking at and something that I've wanted for a
long time are systems that have a very sound architectural base. Then we are more in a
maintenance mode so that as procedures change, we're not re-designing the entire system.

Jim Silrum, Deputy Secretary of State: Technology solves a lot, but sometimes when we
solve problems, then people say, "Since we can do this, wouldn't It be nice if we could do
that?" The question comes in where do we stop saying, yes we should do that. When we
deliver services online, that's where our customers say, "Wouldn't it be great if we could..."
As government, we try to respond to the people and we have to make those critical
decisions.

Senator Sorvaag: Do you have room to house the new employees since you're getting
some additional room? Will they be housed in this complex?

Al Jaeger: When ITD moved out, | do have additional space coming in the J-wing. It
needs to be remodeled but at least | have all my staff within walking distance. | had eight
people off campus for over two years.
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Senator Bowman: With the data and the growth in business activity, with the slowdown in
oil, we may see a slow decrease, but the growth will still come back. Is that going to be
able to accommodate another 79,000 more businesses so we won't have to go thru this
again in six years?

Al Jaeger: A filing is a filing. So if the system exists to do an annual report, to do one. It
can do 100,000. It will be designed to accommodate the load capacity. In 2011, after
approval of the $3.5M, we spent several months with ITD going thru requirements and
requirements, but in the development of that software, the connect in terms of what we
actually do, and Mike Ressler said they really underestimated what our office does. | have
over 40 different duties. | do contractor licensing. | register a number of different
businesses and they all have their differences. | am the commissioner of combative sports
otherwise | was the State Athletic Commissioner.

The sub-committee is Senators Carlisle, Sorvaag and O'Connell.
Senator O'Connell: When the remodeling takes place, who is charged for that?

Al Jaeger: That is something that | don't know. | have permission from Capital Grounds
Planning Commission to pursue it. They understand that adding this second level to the
capitol, they're ok with that. It's a capital improvement type thing, so | don't know how that's
funded. | understand | would get the shell.

Al Jaeger introduced Clara Jenkins, who has been with the office 41 years, is now retired
and a permanent temporary helper because she has institutional memory. Another person
forced to retire is Linda Gregoryk. We have two data bases; the mainframe where the
central indexing is and the AS-400 that has RPG programming. There is no one in town
anymore that handles that kind of programming. The only person in our office who has a
working knowledge of the AS-400 with the RPG programming is being forced to retire at the
end of February. | need my system.

Senator Heckaman: | hear frustration with your IT project and a majority of that funding
has been available with special appropriations. Is there a possibility that we could get a
printout of how much total funding that the State of North Dakota has put in over the years?
Have you had to put in general funds of your own into some of the project development that
you've not been able to recapture?

Al Jaeger: In our detailed summary, it indicates a history of that and we can certainly get
that information to you. The first time | asked for funding, | asked for $500,000. The
Governor gave me $250,000 and the legislature gave me $175,000. Until the 2011 session
where we thought we had full funding, now ITD says they had underestimated the
complexity of our project. We thought we were in pretty good shape, but that didn't turn
out.

Senator Heckaman: Have you had to use some of your general funds in any portion of
that project that was completed?
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Al Jaeger: We're giving one-time funding over and above our budget so yes, we've had to
dig into our regular operating to subsidize some of that to carry us forward. When you look
at my budget, you'll see that I'm partially general funded, but | also have a special fund.

My special fund is what we call our retail account. If | sell 2000 CDs in one month, | have
expenses in direct proportion to that. In that fund I'm able to go with the demand. We've
had cases where we've had money left over. Legislation allows me to carry that forward.
The reasons that there's an exemption made is because agencies will build up special
funds so | asked that the language be written that anything over $75,000 has to be turned
over to the general fund which we have done in the past. Now when we have that
revenue, it's been allowed to be carried forward and that revenue has been applied to our
projects.

Senator Heckaman: Have you been able to get any kind of help from any of the
companies that you've contracted with for this program? Any services that you've been
able to use?

Al Jaeger: In 2011, when we got $3.5M, | was told specifically that we would be using ITD.
ITD has been in charge of the software development. We want to continue on, but we
believe that we've identified vendors. ['ve attended 22 years of National Secretary of State
and I've talked to my colleagues from other states and to top off this project, we'd like to
pursue some of these vendors because they are on the cutting edge of what a Secretary of
State's office does. In answer to your question, ITD has been my developer for the last
couple 2-3 years. We really need to move to a level where we have programming
expertise of people that do this and have accounts in other states. When they see that
something works in another state, | think we're going to be the beneficiaries of that, where if
it's internal, you don't have that particular advantage

Senator Krebsbach: Does ITD pursue these exclusive things for Secretary of States
offices?

Al Jaeger: At this point, it's what do you need, here's what we can do. With ITD, just the
way the system is set up, we're not on a contract. If something is developed that doesn't
work, then it goes back and gets corrected, we pay also for the correction. It's not like
we're working with a private business. Whatever work is done, we pay for it.

Jim Silrum: When we were working on this project with an outside company before ITD,
there was a discussion at the time of could ITD use the software that was built by the
previous vendor? The answer was yes they could, however through discussions that ITD
went through; they determined that it would be far more difficult for them to learn how that
software was constructed to complete it than to begin all over again. In that instance, some
of the technology was not able to be re-used. There have been other things that are being
used today that have been deployed so far with this project.

Senator Carlisle: Do you have a computer person on board in SOS office?
Jim Silrum: We are a small member agency. The most we have are IT coordinators. |

serve as one of those people which just means we try and stay on top of things. We
depend heavily on the state's IT department to provide that level of service for us and we
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contract through them. Even now as we're looking to bring on board an outside vendor to
deploy a central indexing system for us, ITD is working directly with us to help make sure
that we.....

Senator Carlisle: So there isn't a "techy" in the department? (Answer: We do not.)
In our subcommittee, we'd like to talk about that.

Al Jaeger: Between Jim and Clara, they are not the techy people, but these are the people
that have been doing the development of the software.

Senator Robinson: Bringing in an outside vendor is not an exact science either, and we
look at what happened with Workforce Safety - $17M later and now we're starting all over.
It's a challenging issue. ITD is the best we have and to the extent that we can rely on their
services at least on a local level. You're right, they don't have specialized programs to
cover the waterfront. They do the best they can with what they have.

Jim Silrum: Please understand that none of the testimony that Al or | have given today are
in anyway intended to be derogatory towards the services provided by ITD. We're very
grateful for the services that they have provided.

Senator Krebsbach closed the hearing on SB 2002.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolutiol:

This is a sub-committee hearing on the budget of the office of the secretary of state.

Minutes:

Legislative Council - Sean Smith
OMB - Becky Deichert

Senator Carlisle called the sub-committee hearing to order on SB 2002. Sub-committee
members Senator Sorvaag and Senator Robinson were present as well as Senator
Holmberg, Secretary of State Al Jaeger, and Renae Bloms, accounting and budgeting
specialist for SOS office. .

Senator Carlisle asked about the employees that have been with the department a long
time and have technological expertise.

Al Jaeger: Clara Jenkins has been with the office for many years. Our appropriation was
for her to oversee the project. There was 4-5 months of information gathering and many of
the things should have been done by 2013. She's been on part-time basis for about a year
but it's going to come to a point where she will be finished and retire. ITD has run into
challenges well past August 2013. The project is under the direction of a steering
committee. While it's his project, he only has two votes on the steering committee. He kept
documentation of the challenges that they kept encountering, but their requirements are
stacked high. There have been a lot of problems. The project was rebase-lined again and
it will be another 3-4 years before they can get done.

His staff attended national meetings of all Secretary of State's offices and they found
programs that were very good.  One thing delayed was the central indexing system. ITD
wouldn't be done for 3-4 more years. This system connects the agency and the state's
fifty-three county Recorder offices.

We did a RFP in December 2013 and Mike Ressler has said that they under-estimated the
project. The original estimated cost was approx. $4M and it may cost closer to $8M.

The Central Indexing phase has a completion date deadline of August 1, 2015. We have a
bid of $800,000 with an outside vendor. This vendor is in 26 states with very good results.
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The steering committee said projects should have a business analysis done. We asked
that it be funded in this bill and that study will evaluate the entire office and also what ITD
has worked on.

Senator Robinson: Who directed you to work with ITD?

Al Jaeger: In 2010, | was told by Governor's office that we would use ITD.
Senator Carlisle: Can't we require a performance bond?

Al Jaeger: We didn't have a bond with ITD. When | talk to other states, there programs
are exceedingly well done. One company doing the Central Indexing is in 26 states. When
we talk about a corporate filing, they know what we're talking about.

Senator Carlisle: Can we get a bond?
Al Jeager: Our steering committee has legal counsel from the Attorney General's office.
Senator Robinson: ITD will tell you that they've done everything possible.

AL Jaeger: This particular company has told us that when changes have been made,
they have stuck with their bid and they also do maintenance.

Senator Carlisle: Could you put together some bullet points or talking points so we have
accurate information when we take it to the floor?

Senator Robinson: You don’t have expertise in your office, or do they wait until there's
trouble and then hope ITD can help?

Senator Carlisle: Do you have an IT person on your staff? (Answer - No.)

Al Jaeger: We have a person in our office - she's being forced to retire. If our AS/400
goes down, it has RPG programming and there's no one to run it. There are no people in
our office that can run this. The history shows we've asked, but we never get our whole
amount of money. We were told that ITD would give us a figure. | was told $3.5M was
enough, but ITD underestimated the cost and amount of work involved.

ITD has to approve the architecture and we have no one we can hire that has that high
level of expertise. With the programming, we can document how many months we have
but if there are any problems, we get charged. ITD didn't give us a bid so we have to pay
for everything.

Senator Sorvaag: You don't have an IT person, so if we get an outside vendor and you
have an issue, you have to depend on them.

Al Jaeger: The Executive Steering Committee allowed us to use an outside vendor. We
also had to meet statutory deadlines of August 1, but have to resort to an outside vendor.
We rebase-lined and now the project won't get done for 3-4 years.

| don't feel our agency can get the qualified person that we would need. In terms of
development, we have had people who have said that this is how SOS office should work.
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A vendor shows us a product that has everything and even more and they will do
maintenance for 3-4 years.

We're in a tough spot. Any changes that | make, 4 out of 5 members of the steering
committee have to agree. They have now agreed that they would evaluate the functions of
the Secretary of State's office what has been done so far.

Senator Robinson: It all costs money, but with outside vendors, it usually costs more.

Al Jaeger: Based on what | learned in 8-9 months, we could already have in place
everything we need and everything we want. | was under the impression that | have no
choice but to go with ITD.

Senator Carlisle: Who is on the steering committee?
Al Jaeger: Who is my vendor? It's ITD.

Al Jaeger: The Executive Steering Committee consists of myself (Secretary of State),
Jim Silrum, (Deputy SOS), Mike Ressler (ITD Director), Pam Sharp (OMB Director),
and Justin Data (ITD). | can't talk budget with Pam Sharp. We had to convince the
steering committee that this program is being done on 26 states.

Senator Carlisle: How old is the AS/4007?
Becky Deichert: Itis old. Not aware of anyone else that is using it.
Senator Carlisle: There's only one person who runs AS/4007?

Al Jaeger: I've asked for funding for AS/400. Central Indexing is on the mainframe and
I've been told to get off. Last session, we were allowed to carry money forward. | don't
have anything to show for it. The project has been put on pause.  Senator Robinson
knows that we thought we could model a system like North Carolina. After spending
$800,000, ITD said it's not going to work. It was Al and Mike's project and in our failure,
we've had changes.

Senator Sorvaag: If we went along with $3M plus, does this say that the outside vendor
will be hired?

Al Jaeger: The Executive Steering Committee has agreed to develop the Central Indexing
System. Part of the deficiency appropriation is to give us money to pay ITD for the money
they're borrowing from the BND to pay for the project. Now we're having discussions and
Mike Ressler is emphatic that we need a business analyst. ITD underestimated our office.
| have over 40 different functions. The Steering Committee agreed to have a study and see
if we'll go with an outside vendor or continue with ITD. We can't do any of that unless we
have the funding. Based on other states, the $3M should be enough.

Senator Sorvaag: You feel that this would be enough.



Senate Appropriations Committee
SB 2002 sub-committee

January 26, 2015

Page 4

Al Jaeger: Yes, and New Mexico has said this could be done within 2-3 years. ITD even
controls the software that we use right now. They've been working on it for several years
and aren't close to completing and they charge us out so it's costing way more money.

Senator Carlisle asked about the growing business registration unit and if businesses can
go online for forms.

Al Jaeger: We receive an email almost every day that asks if they can fill out something
online. We're gathering requirements. It just continues on and on. The vendor that we've
talked to - when | say something about registration, they know what we're talking about.
We've had to take ITD programmers from ground zero.

Senator Carlisle asked about the requested positions and about converting some of them
to fulltime.

Al Jaeger: They go elsewhere because they can get benefits. Some we can convert and
we have also gone thru an agency. There's no way that | can separate the two bills SB
2023 and this SB 2002. | need the money to get the project completed.

| have no control over the project and | don't know if I'm asking for me or the steering
committee.

Senator Carlisle closed the subcommittee hearing on SB 2002.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of billlresolutioﬁ

This is a sub-committee hearing on the office of the Secretary of State.

Minutes:

Legislative Council - Sean Smith
OMB - Sheila Peterson

Senator Carlisle called the sub-committee to order on SB 2002. Senators Sorvaag,
Robinson, Lee and Holmberg were also present.
Also Secretary of State Al Jaeger and ITD Director Mike Ressler.

Senator G. Lee: There is $950,000 in the deficiency appropriation for the Secretary of
State's office, and now we're asked to add another $400,000. In the December minutes
provided in the SOS testimony, it says you may borrow money from $850,000 to $950,000
to cover the work that was going to be done. Is that what we're paying for and why is it in
the Secretary of State's budget as opposed to being in yours - if we're paying back the note
that you got?

Mike Ressler: We realized we weren't going to have enough funding in the Secretary of
State's biennium's budget to complete all the work that we knew that we could get done. |
went to the budget section and updated them that we would use the authority we had to
borrow up to a million dollars. We ended up picking $950,000 and borrowed it from the
Bank of North Dakota. The thought process was instead of ITD going to the Legislature to
ask for funding, we wanted to keep it in the Secretary of State's budget because it's actually
their application. Even though they receive the funds and give it to ITD, we thought it was a
cleaner way to present that.

Senator G. Lee: If you borrow for any of these projects, you filter it back to the agency that
you're borrowing it from?

Mike Ressler: Yes, every time we've borrowed for an agency project, we always have the
agency request it. Primarily in the Human Services case, they get a federal fund match.
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Senator G. Lee: In some of the minutes, it talks about borrowing $950,000, but the original
plan did not include training costs and the plan underestimated the complexity of some of
those components. Is that why there was the $950,0007? (Answer - Correct.) Who put the
plan together?

Mike Ressler: When we put a cost estimate together, it was ITD that worked with the
Secretary of State's office and came up with an estimate as to what we thought this project
would cost. When we look back at our history in these multi-million dollar multi-year
projects, we have not been very good at being accurate. We give that best guess at the
time and when we get into the project, we do the analysis and determine what it is we're
actually going to develop. In this case, we found we underestimated the cost.

Senator G. Lee: In the same set of minutes on Dec 10 & 11, the project cost was $4M
and is now going to be $8M?

Mike Ressler: That was our best guess. Without completing the business analysis, that
we are requesting for the second half of the deficiency - there's the $950,000 we borrowed
and then an additional $400,000 that the Secretary has asked for in the deficiency
appropriation - until we've completed a business analysis as to exactly what it is that the
requirements are for the other remaining parts, we don't know what the total cost will be. It
was our estimate that the total cost of the project would be around $8M.

Senator G. Lee: So switching to the $400,000 that's being requested now, that would do
the business analysis of the project itself to figure out what you do need?

Mike Ressler: For the remaining components, that is correct.

Senator G. Lee: If someone asked 'why wasn't that done before the $950,000?" what
would my answer be to them?

Mike Ressler: What we are requesting now for all future large IT projects, is that we
complete this business analysis component before we get into an IT project. Again, our
experience has been that we jump into these IT projects, get into what we're trying to
accomplish and then learn things that we didn't know when we first came to the Governor's
office and then the legislature to get funding. Then we're disappointed because then we
realize that when we gave the original estimate, we weren't including everything. By doing
this business analysis, we will go into an agency, have the agency define what their
business requirements are and that will define the scope of the project. My hope is that
we're going to be a lot more accurate when we come to the legislature for funding in the
future because we're going to complete this study first.

Senator G. Lee: So this methodology is new to the way you're going to deal with these?

Mike Ressler: We've implemented it twice now - both with WSI's project and the
Department of Transportation's motor vehicle project. Both did the business analysis first.
Both of those are completed and now we're going to actually start the project.

Senator G. Lee: New in 2014 - that you've initiated this? (Answer - Correct.)




Senate Appropriations Committee
SB 2002 sub-committee

February 3, 2015

Page 3

Senator Carlisle asked for a memo or bullet points when they take the bill to the floor -
explaining about the new process and WSI because they have the same issue.

Senator Robinson said he supports doing the business analysis and thinks we should do
the analysis. WSI should have been done earlier.

Mike Ressler: It's my recommendation that you fund the $950,000 deficiency because
that's money already borrowed. The $400,000 for the business analysis, | strongly
recommend because that's how we're going to feel more comfortable that we know exactly
what we want to finish going in - which is the $3M that's in the Secretary of State's budget.
My other strong recommendation would be to fund the position request that is in Al's budget
request. With this project, as well as another large project we're doing, in both cases, their
day to day workload takes them away from the project and puts these projects at risk -
especially from a schedule standpoint. All these components need to be funded in order to
be successful.

Senator Carlisle: I'm referring to the green sheet, you're talking about the 6 FTE office
assistant?

Mike Ressler: Correct. It would be the business people, not technology positions.

Senator Sorvaag: Where does the $3M come from if you haven't done a business
analysis? The whole purpose of the business analysis is to figure out, but going forward,
we've got $3M in the budget.

Mike Ressler: Correct. Our belief will be that we'll need those $3M to implement what the
business analysis will direct us to do. In a perfect world, we do the business analysis in a
interim, or a biennium, and then find out what it is we want to come back to the Governor
and the legislature for from a funding request. In this case, we believe that after we
complete a business analysis, which we estimate will take about 8 weeks. We will then
have our direction so we can jump right in and finish deploying the remaining components
which would all take place in the 2015-17 biennium.

Senator Sorvaag: So the $3M is a guess. (Answer - yes.)

Senator G. Lee: So anyone who has an ITD project, they come to ITD to get authorization
to move forward with business plan? How does it get started now?

Mike Ressler: They wouldn't come necessarily to ITD. It's just been my recommendation
to these department heads that they don't proceed until they complete that phase. They
would request funding to do business analysis. We then go out with an RFP and hire
someone to come in and probably sit down with the agency and have them define exactly
what it is the business requirements are that we then need to look at an automated system.
ITD wouldn't necessarily do the work. They don't need my permission to do it. It would just
be my advice that they proceed that way.

Senator G. Lee: So it's an outside consultant that will help the secretary in his defining
what kind of software package they need to make it work.
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Mike Ressler: It would be an outside person. They may not even pick a software product.
The whole purpose of the business analysis is to define the business needs. In most
cases, there may be an automated tool that will do that, but they may find that there's a
manual step that could be done here instead of an automated step. The purpose isn't
necessarily to buy technology. It's to define what it is we want to accomplish before we get
into the project and actually start programming and then realize that we maybe should go
this direction.

Senator Carlisle: Roughly there are 30 FTEs on board, but no one IT. Out of the six
office assistant, there would still be no semblance of IT.

Mike Ressler: My belief is that they are not IT people. We need people that really
understand the agency's business because they're the ones that will have to work with the
hired IT people that we bring in - whether that be IT staff or the vendor that we've selected
for the UCC component which is a company called PCC Technology. We have to make
sure that we have dedicated staff that know the business to work with these technology
people as they're deploying the solution.

Senator Carlisle: Is there any way we can performance bond these people? What
happens if they don't produce?

Mike Ressler: | think the state has done a really good job over the years in proving our
contracts that we're putting in place. What we find with the performance bond is that
they're very expensive. What the vendor does every time is raise the cost of our contract
which means we pay for it. Then it's never one party's fault. With a performance bond, you
get into defining 70% your fault, 30% my fault. I'm not sure the performance bond is the
best vehicle. In current contracts, we've incorporated something called damages. They
operate in a similar way, but if you're late on deliverables or deliverables aren't signed off,
you can build in financial fees to reimburse the state.

Al Jaeger: Part of what Senator G. Lee asked with the Business Process Modeling (BPM)
or the analysis, we have an AS/400 that was developed prior to 1991-1992. We're
essentially doing the same thing that we have over the years. We've told IT this is what we
want. But the key is that the analysis is someone's outside opinion and looking at our
processes. | think this would help us a lot. There are 11 that have submitted RFPs. The
evaluators have evaluated and scored someone to select. The one part that | don't know is
that | took the top end of the range because we don't know what the dollar amount is yet.

It ranged from $60,000 to $400,000. At this stage of the game, | want to make sure we're
covered.

About help, we are small agency. | have 30 people including me. Everyone in our office is
hands on. When the lead people need to be in place to do the day to day work, it's been
very challenging to free those people up. There's a lot of routine work, but we've been
averaging 4-6 temporary people. As we go down the road, I'm not going to hire people if
we don't need them. We need the backfill - the people who really know our operations.
I'm on the verge of losing a lot of institutional knowledge. I've already got one that is with us
temporary who has had 41 years of experience and also one that will be a forced
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retirement. The reason to ask for the funding for the BPM now is that it's an emergency.
When it passes, we can start on that process right away which will gain us valuable time.

Senator Carlisle: The 6 FTE office assistant position - Are some temps going to be able to
apply? Is their job description ready to go?

Al Jaeger: They are ready to go. The temps we have, if they're doing a good job, we'd like
very much to have them, but we have one thru a staffing agency. We have to deal with the
staffing agency.

Senator Carlisle: It's $574,000. Would you get us a job description so we know what
we're dealing with? Retirements - these things are going to happen so you have to plan
ahead.

Al Jaeger: We when we started this in 2011, we had that covered and that is what Clara
was going to finish her career out on.

Senator Carlisle: This 5 member committee, the Executive Steering Committee. How
often do they meet?

Al Jaeger: You as a legislative body, mandated on projects like this, to have an Executive
Steering committee. It's my project, but I'm subject to the Steering Committee. We have
open meetings and meet twice a month. We're meeting Thursday and on the 26". The
Steering Committee has it's own legal counsel. My deputy and myself represent the
Secretary of State's office. Any change in the project needs four out of the five.

Senator Carlisle asked you will meet Thursday?

Al Jaeger: The secretary of state's budget is not part of the steering committee. I'm here
not as a member of the steering committee, but this is the secretary of state's budget and
I'm trying to rationalize the decision as far as the $950,000. That was a steering
committee decision. The recommendation that we do the business process modeling or
the business analysis was a steering committee decision. But then it turns around and |
have to ask for it.

Yesterday, we had five people in from PCC Technology. They're starting on the Central
Indexing System. We'll get an update on that and we'll get an update from our project
manager who will most likely give us an update that PCC is in.

Senator Sorvaag: In the business analysis study, do they recommend - once they get
done and see the picture of what you are that state A, B, and D have similar things and
already have software working or is that beyond the scope of what they're going to do?

Mike Ressler: That's one of the things we look for in the business analysis. If they have
advice for us as to other existing systems out there, we would hope that they give us that
recommendation. But the primary purpose is just to document the business needs so that
we can then make that determination ourself.
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Al Jaeger: If you dig out the testimony that | gave you for our budget bill, | actually slipped
in several pages of the RFP for the business process modeling. | wanted you to see what
that $400,000 was for. That was about 26-27 pages.

Senator Holmberg: This is a project that has taken some time and as you described that
the steering committee needs 4 out of the 5 to agree before the committee can pass a
recommendation. The committee has agreed to do the $950,000. So I'm assuming you
supported what the committee wanted. It sounds at times like there's a little difference of
opinion. On these items today, I'm assuming you voted for them.

Al Jaeger: Yes, the ultimate vote came about after a lot of discussion in terms of the
business process modeling, the timing of it, what the RFP should cover. At some particular
point we do come to an agreement. If | feel | have to put my foot down, | will put my foot
down, but so far we've been able to work through all of the issues. It's my project but | do
not have sole control. | haven't had sole control since August of 2013.

Senator G. Lee: As you look back at the RFPs that you got, you picked the high
($400,000) one so you've got enough money, correct?

Mike Ressler: Yes, we picked the high end. We'll actually know that before you leave the
legislature.

Senator G. Lee: When do you expect this project to be completed?

Mike Ressler: We need to do the business analysis to define what the remaining
components are. We're hoping by the end of the 2015-17 biennium.

Senator Carlisle: What's the threshold before you do a business analysis on an IT
project?

Mike Ressler: We've determined a large IT project usually starts at $500,000 and above.
My recommendation is to do a business analysis before we start.

Senator Robinson: | think the recommendation that Mike is making is something that we
need to do with all IT projects. If you look at the total package, we have done very well in
ND. WSI is the worst case scenario, but this is one more step in checks and balances that
we have in place. Any of the large projects that we look at, this has to be job one. Overall
it's a pretty darn good system.

Senator Carlisle: We're trying to figure out some semblance of a plan in light of the oil
projections.

Al Jaeger: | can't speak for the steering committee, but from the standpoint of our office,
we believe that there's a plan. We have the central indexing underway and if we get the
business process modeling, it will set the stage for us to do the next stage. If we get
support in those areas, we feel that we'll be successful. When we started in 2011, | was
supposed to have this year and a half ago and we still don't have it. There have been
delays. The people | had in my office yesterday, they are absolutely knowledgeable about
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the central indexing. The questions they asked came from a base of knowledge and that
really pleased me.

Senator Carlisle asked about HB 1053 - the desktop services.

Mike Ressler said it's waiting to go to Appropriations. It hasn't gone to full appropriations
yet. The policy side heard it, passed it and it hasn't been heard in appropriations.

Al Jaeger: Right now the secretary of state's office brings in a lot more money than we are
appropriated and this morning earlier, because of the fee change (in contractor licensing),
we're going to add another million dollars in the next biennium. We are generating enough
to cover all of our requests.

Senator Carlisle: What's the issue with contractors?

Al Jaeger: Our business registrations have jumped 180%. We have a lot of out-of-state
companies that file their annual reports online. They can't do that in North Dakota. So
that's a very labor intensive area. In some states, and | talked to Vermont, they said 90%
of their annual report filers filed online.

Senator Carlisle: The two items are in the deficiency appropriation, right? There is
nothing to amend on this budget until we get some semblance of guidelines.

Senator Carlisle closed the hearing on SB 2002.
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This is a sub-committee hearing on the office of the Secretary of State.

Minutes: Attachment 1

Legislative Council - Alex Cronquist
OMB - Sheila Peterson

Senator Carlisle called the sub-committee to order on SB 2002. Senator Sorvaag and
Senator Robinson were also present.

Al Jaeger, North Dakota Secretary of State supplied the committee with a listing, job
description and prioritization of the 6 FTEs that he is requesting. Attachment #1.

Senator Carlisle informed the committee that the breakdowns will be 3-3,
Your computer is way up at the top, as far as priorities, right?

Al Jaeger -- It is over the top. It is essential. As I've said, we believe that we have a plan
in place. On the central indexing, the vendor came in a week ago and reported that what
they were going to accomplish in 2 weeks, was accomplished in 1 week. On the business
process modeling, our steering committee met on Thursday we put out an intent to award
and it is the same analyst as WSI and DOT. They are the highest ranked.

Senator Robinson -- The committee on deficiency will recommend to the full
appropriations committee the $1.35M. And that is in SB2023.

Al Jaeger --If we get the $3M here, then we will have the three pieces together that we
need.

Senator Carlisle --You handed out the FTE's and the governor recommended the 6 and
then you had one time on the 3. What's going to happen, we are going to be kicking
budgets out. We're starting with the Governor tomorrow morning. Have you given thought
to 5 positions, which 5 or how you are looking at handling that?
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Al Jaeger -- The one thing that we definitely would want is the 3 that were authorized last
session. They are in place and being trained. The system shows 9 but keep in mind that
we've had 3 of them for 2 years.

Senator Carlisle: The 3 FTE's that were authorized, they are your top 3 out of the 9 right
now?

Al Jaeger -- Yes, because they are trained and working. As to the other 6, we did a little
trade-off & because | have temporary help and we also have overtime, that was taken out
of our budget and if we don't get all 6, we just need to keep in mind that we might have to
add back in some of our overtime and temporary salaries. | have 5-6 temp people in my
office all the time.

Senator Carlisle -- Out of those 6, give me a figure?

Al Jaeger -- In the sheet, the position Ill can do all of these positions. We have office
assistant Ill is what we have based in the budget. If you go to office assistant |, they are
not supposed to do Il and Ill but Il could have a wide variety of duties.

Senator Carlisle -- On page 2 of 5, the office assistant Ill, you budgeted for 6 of those?
Al Jaeger -- Yes.

Senator Sorvaag -- So you're looking at $95,000/each of the 67 | would think that there
would be a little hope that when this computer program starts working, it might alleviate
some pressure for these office assistants.

Al Jaeger -- We're never going to have more people than we actually need. So if this
software program really does some things where we're able to create some efficiencies,
that would be great. The thing we have to realize is that under the best circumstances,
they will have a jump start at developing the rest of the system. Realistically, we have to
look at 2 years to get that accomplished.

Senator Robinson: In exchange for FTEs and part time labor, what type of money were
we looking at in terms of reduction in that area?

Sheila Peterson, OMB -- In the governor's budget, we removed $225,600 for overtime
funding in the governor's recommendation .

Senator Robinson -- What happens if there are 4 that are funded, and 6 months into the
biennium they are in a crunch time, can they approach the emergency commission if there
is not authorization in the budget?

Sheila Peterson -- | don't believe they would be able to do that. Once the legislature has
indicated an intent not to fund something, they can't come back to the emergency
commission for the exact same thing.
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Senator Carlisle -- Use 3 to 4 of those and then put in some overtime money to cover?

Senator Sorvaag -- The three that are with them are evidently experienced people. I'm not
sure of the numbers. It would make sense to add overtime to experienced people to get a
system up and running.

Al Jaeger -- In 2012, | was able to come to the emergency commission budget section and
get the three FTEs that we have now. It wasn't denied. It was something that was in
addition to. The thing would be to receive some FTEs and then knew that we had funding.
If the concern is the FTE as long as it wasn't denied, I'd have flexibility with funding.

Senator Robinson -- Going into crossover, both House and Senate have talked about
reducing a number of areas to respond to the new budget forecast. One of those areas is
FTE's. All agencies.

Senator Carlisle -- Sheila, the 3 FTEs that are in place and funded, and the 3 office
assistant Ill, what overtime money could we put in addition to fill the gap?

Sheila Peterson -- | think that might be a question that Renae can answer. Of the
$225,000 overtime, that was removed in the governors budget, because we did
recommend the 6 additional. How much would be workable?

Al Jaeger -- If we had $200,000 that would help. And one of the things, | don't sense this
is the poured in the concrete type of thing. It's something that you need now and If this is
the process, we'll just go thru that process.

Senator Carlisle -- You take the interim committee bills that went forward, add in the
governor's budget and crossover and we're upside down.

Al Jaeger --The deficiency and the $3 million is so important. We will do the best we can
with everything else, but that project is so important for the long haul.

Senator Sorvaag --We have the information that we need and now the committee has to
do the work. It's a work in process. We don't know what the numbers will say in March.
We have to do something reasonable.

Al Jaeger --| hope the software is solid.

Senator Robinson -- We understand that it needs to be done.

Senator Carlisle -- If we can get the hardware and the three that are in place and the three
office assistants Ill and some overtime money, we've got something to work with

Senator Sorvaag -- There's no overtime money at all in his budget now?

Al Jaeger -- There's some, but not to the extent there was.
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Renae Bloms, Accounting Director, Secretary of State Office -- You said, Sheila, that
they have the intent that they denied the 3 FTE's. You know we have 6 right now and then
they gave us 3 plus the overtime. He can't go to the emergency commission, like he did
before, and ask for that 3, even if you have the funding because it was denied during
session, right?(19:17)

Sheila Peterson -- | think that is a question for an attorney. But that is how we have
always read the emergency commission statutes. (19:21)

Senator Carlisle -- For Alex for drafting an amendment, it would basically be to add 3
FTEs; 3 office assistant Ill, and overtime of $200,000, & then salary adjustment.

Senator Carlisle --The equity goes out. The salary adjustment: I'd call it a 3/3 salary
compensation package. The retirement adjustment as well? Or is the senate doing that?

Sheila Peterson -- So the salary increase is 4/4, are you saying? No, it's 3/3,not
considering the retirement issue at all?

Senator Sorvaag -- Our understanding was the second year of the biennium was where
the 1% for retirement, which made it 4/4. And an actual salary, our understanding is 4-3
and the 1% was for the retirement. And that's on the other side.

Sheila Peterson -- So, the one percent is effective January 1, 2016. 3-3, not 4-3.

Senator Sorvaag -- Whatever they do over there. That might not even be there. So we
are talking salary. 3/3. The second 4 included the 1%. There's no medical change.

Senator Sorvaag -- The 1% might not be brought into play. They are working on
amendments for the governor's budget. The 3/3 is salary.

Al Jaeger -- We'll make it work. It's part of the process and we also have some other
things are in play.

Senator Robinson -- What the package is for governor's bill 2001 tomorrow - that will be
for salary.
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A BILL for an Act to defray the expenses of the Secretary of State (Do Pass as Amended)

Minutes: Attachment# 1 - 3

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on Friday, February 13, 2015 in regards
to SB 2002. All committee members were present. Brady Larson, Legislative Council,
Chris Kadrmas, Legislative Council and Tammy Dolan, OMB were also present.

Senator Carlisle moved the Proposed Amendment # 15.8135.01001, attachment # 1.
2" by Senator Robinson .

Senator Carlisle also passed out the marked up SB 2002, Attachment # 2. And the green
sheet Execu